
ADDENDUM NO. 1/Bid Postponement 
 

TO 
 

Western Avenue Viaduct over Belmont Avenue 
Viaduct Demolition and Corridor Improvements 

CDOT PROJECT NO.  E-6-149 
SPECIFICATION NO.  126570 

F.A. PROJECT NO.  M-6000 (476) 
STATE JOB NO.  C-88-003-15 

SECTION NO.  07-E6149-00-BR736 
 

For which bids will be opened in the office of the Department of Procurement Services, 
Room 301, City Hall Chicago, Illinois 60602, on Thursday, September 3, 2015 is reschedule 
to September 9, 2015 at 11:00 a.m. Central  time. 
 
 

BIDDER WILL ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF THIS ADDENDUM IN THE SPACE 
PROVIDED ON THE PROPOSAL PAGE 

 
The Bid Opening Date has been postponed from September 3, 2015 to September 9, 2015 
at 11:00 a.m. Central time 

 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

1. Question:   The description of Item 72 (X0327357) Construction Vibration Monitoring 
states that the Contractor shall designate a minimum of two monitoring point locations for 
each of the individual structural elements or addresses listed. However, the first bullet 
point that follows is “Existing Western Avenue Viaduct over Belmont Avenue (SN 016-
6134) – Each span, and each approach”. This would imply that each span and approach 
of the Western Avenue Viaduct needs Vibration Monitoring. But, why monitor these 
spans and approaches if the structure is being demolished? Alternatively, is the intent of 
this requirement to provide Vibration Monitoring for the structures that are ADJACENT to 
each span and each approach during demolition? If so, this appears that it would be a 
relatively large number of buildings. Would it be possible to more specifically list the 
addresses of the structures that will require vibration monitoring as has been done for 
other CDOT projects, such as the Wacker Drive Viaduct Reconstruction? 

 
Answer:   Please refer to the attached specification update for Item 72 for additional 
information. The intent is to monitor the areas adjacent to the viaduct demolition.   
 

2. Question:   Also, in Item 72, the second bullet point states that Vibration Monitoring is 
required for “Existing Western Avenue Bridge over North Branch Chicago River (SN 016-
6070) – Retaining Walls, abutments, and piers to remain in place”. Will the piers that are 
to remain in the middle of the river be required to be monitored for vibration? Also, will 



the adjacent buildings that are very close to this bridge at all four corners also require 
vibration monitoring? 
 
Answer:  The piers themselves will not be monitored. Please refer to the attached 
specification update for Item 72 for additional information.   

 
3. Question:   In general, is it possible to more clearly list the vibration monitoring locations 

that will be required for this project? 
 
Answer:  Please refer to the attached specification update for Item 72 for additional 
information.  The additional locations beyond those stated explicitly in the special 
provision will be determined by the Commissioner as field conditions dictate. 
 

4. Question:   Per the landscape plan drawings L-1 through L-18, I only count 15 total 
benches; however pay item no. 293 calls for 24 benches. Please indicate where the 
additional benches are located or revise the number of benches required under pay item 
no. 293. 
 
Answer:  The plans indicate locations for 15 benches. The additional 9 benches will be 
located per the direction of the Commissioner during construction.  
 

5. Question:   Per detail / sheet: 2 / L-33, the GC is to provide ten (10) new trash 
receptacles, however pay item no. 295 calls for 14 trash receptacles to be provided. 
Please clarify the number of new trash receptacles required under pay item no. 295. 
 
Answer:  The quantity listed on sheet L-33 includes the replacement of the 4 existing 
trash receptacles. The contractor is to provide 14 new trash receptacles. 
 

6. Question:   Per detail / sheet: 2 / L-33, there are four (4) existing trash receptacles. 
Please indicate if these receptacles are to remain untouched during construction, 
relocated, or removed prior to construction & then reinstalled after construction is 
complete. 
 
Answer:  Remove the existing receptacles and replace with new receptacles. 
 

7. Question:   Please clarify if the existing four (4) existing trash receptacles are included 
in the item no. 295 quantity, which notes 14 trash receptacles. 
 
Answer:  The quantity listed on sheet L-33 includes the replacement of the 4 existing 
trash receptacles. The contractor is to provide 14 new trash receptacles. 
 

8. Question:   Per general note 25 on sheet G-2 and also per the general requirements 
listed under the specifications for item no. 296: “Removal of existing racks and 
abandoned bicycles attached to existing racks will be addressed under the item BIKE 
RACK REMOVE AND REINSTALL.” Please provide a pay item number for BIKE RACK 



REMOVE AND REINSTALL. Unless noted otherwise, F.H. Paschen will include the 
removal of existing racks and abandoned bicycles attached to existing racks under pay 
item no. 296 – bike racks. 
 
Answer:  BIKE RACK REMOVE AND REINSTALL is included as pay item 43. Please 
reference the special provision included in Book 3 on page DS-24. 
 

9. Question:   Please specify a list of approved manufacturers for pay item no. 296 – bike 
racks. 
 
Answer:  CDOT does not specify standard manufacturers for the bike racks. The bike 
racks utilized must comply with the project specification and detail included in the plans. 

 
10. Question:   Do you have any pavement cores for the existing median, and existing 

driveways? 
 
Answer:   All cores taken for the project were included in the plans. Refer to sheets G-
13 thru G-19. 
 

11. Question:   Do you have a soil analysis for the non-special, and special waste soils? 
The waste facilities is requesting them. 
 
Answer:   Soils will be classified in the field per the provisions included in the contract 
documents. Soils that cannot be reused on site and require disposal will be paid for 
under the above referenced pay items pending their classification in the field. 

 
12. Question:   Please provide locations for “Hot-Mix Asphalt Surface Removal, Variable 

Depth” other than the locations shown on drawings C-1 thru C-22. 
 
Answer:   Outside of what is shown on sheets C-1 through C-22, the remaining “Hot-Mix 
Asphalt Surface Removal, Variable Depth” can be found on MOT sheets:  MOT-4, 5, 7, & 
8:  “Inset A” and “Note 1”.  

 
13. Question:   Do the existing steel beams for the bridge over the North Branch of the 

Chicago River contain lead paint? If they do contain lead paint, how will lead abatement 
that will be required to do the structural steel repairs be paid  for?  How will the lead paint 
removal that will be required to prep the existing beam top flange surfaces to receive 
shear studs be paid for? 
 
Answer:   The existing steel beams have been recently repainted as part of a 
maintenance project with a non-lead based system. The top flange of the steel beams 
typically are not painted. Should lead-based paint be encountered, it will be handled per 
Article 109.04 of the SSRBC 

 
14. Question:   What paint system is required for the structural steel repairs? 

 



Answer:   Use Inorganic Zinc-Rich/Waterborne Acrylic paint System as per Article 
“506.08 (a) - Painting Systems for New Structures” . 
 

15. Question:   The contract has provisions to install a protective shield for the river bridge. 
The plans also have notes(note 11 plans pg 29) that reference the use of barges and a 
barge location plan(plans pg 41). Is the use of barges mandatory?. 
 
Answer:   The use of barges is not mandatory and is considered the means and 
methods of the Contractor. The barge location plan was required as part of the advance 
coordination with the USACE. 
 

16. Question:   Bid Item-70 - Please provide minimum loading requirements for Utility 
Protection Pad. 
 
Answer:   The utility protection pad shall be sized by the contractor, and shall be of 
sufficient durability to protect the existing utilities from debris of the demolition activities 
with consideration to the contractor’s selected means and methods 
 

17. Question:   Special Provisions DS-90, Pedestrian Access, requires contractor to provide 
pedestrian access at all times. Please explain and show access points since the contract 
plans for Maintenance of Traffic shows full sidewalk closures(with signage) for stages 
2A, 2B and stage 3. No access through the work zones are shown to accommodate 
pedestrian access. 
 
Answer:   The contractor must provide pedestrian access at all times in compliance with 
the contract provisions.  The contractor’s means and methods must allow for access to 
be maintained to all properties throughout construction. The work must be staged as 
indicated in the plans to maintain access and provide pedestrian routes.    
 

18. Question:   Please provide details for temporary bus stop. 
 
Answer:   A temporary concrete surface should be provided to permit the loading / 
unloading of CTA bus passengers. The concrete slab should have a minimum thickness 
of 5 inches and follow all applicable Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements 
and City of Chicago codes and ordinances. An ADA accessible path shall be provided 
from the temporary loading/ unloading surface to the existing/ proposed sidewalk.  The 
contractor shall ensure that this accessible path is protected from adjacent construction 
activities and live vehicle traffic.  The contractor shall coordinate with the CTA regarding 
any further requirements for bus loading/ unloading surfaces.  All temporary bus stops 
and accessible paths shall be included in the cost of TRAFFIC CONTROL AND 
PROTECTION, SPECIAL. 
 

19. Question:   Plan notes on pages 194 & 195 indicate that the temporary barrier wall 
relocation is incidental. This is in conflict with Pay Item-146 for Temp Barrier Wall 
Relocation. 
 



Answer:   Relocation of temporary barrier walls will be paid for as Item 146 RELOCATE 
TEMPORARY CONCRETE BARRIER. 
 

20. Question:   Reference Note 2, Drawing S-3, Sheet 194.   
a. Will Com Ed Ducts Be Removed Prior to Bridge Deck Removal?   
b. Or will Com Ed Ducts be supported? 
c. If Ducts are supported, how will they be supported? 
d. If the Contractor is required to install protective shield to support the Com Ed Ducts, 
we need to know this before we bid the job. 
 
Answer:  This answer presumes you are referring to the existing AT&T ductbank. The 
direction provided by AT&T is that they will temporarily support the ductbank using their 
forces. Contractor will be required to coordinate with AT&T forces.  

 
21. Question:   Will metal pan decking be allowed over the two bays of Com Ed Ducts and 

the one bay over the water main? 
 
Answer:   Per City standards, metal pan decking is not allowed.  

 
22. Question:   Will metal pan decking be allowed over the whole deck? 

 
Answer:   Per City standards, metal pan decking is not allowed. 

 
23. Question:   Reference MOT-13, Sheet 41.  It is not clear if it is acceptable to position 

barges directly below the bridge.  In order to access the underside of the bridge from the 
barge it needs to be placed adjacent to the piers for extended periods of time.  Will the 
Contractor be allowed to place the barges adjacent to the piers for extended periods of 
time? 
 
Answer:   The placement and use of barges is subject to the restrictions and conditions 
shown on sheet 41 per coordination with the USACE.  

 
24. Question:    What would be the latest date that the contract could possibly be awarded? 

 
Answer:   We are unable to project an award date. With an accepted bid, the typical 
award period is 90 days. 
 

25. Question:   Is there any additional ROW that be utilized outside of the River Bridge?  If 
so where can this ROW be seen? 
 
Answer:   The ROW limits for the project are shown on the plans.  

 
26. Question:   Sheet S-38 Note 5 states that “Any additional structural repairs that are 

required to the substructure unit up to 10% beyond the quantity shown are considered 
incidental.”  The purpose of pay items is to measure and pay for the in place quantity 
required.  This note should not be in the plans.  If the quantity were to go under by 10% 
would you still pay plan quantity? 



 
Answer:   Contractor will be paid per the quantity of work as measured in the field.  

 
27. Question:   Sheet S-40 shows repairs that are to me made to the Fender on Pier 1.  

Since this item is incidental, if additional areas are to be repaired beyond what is shown 
how will this be paid? 
 
Answer:   This will be coordinated in the field should the conditions change per the 
standard provisions. 

 
28. Question:   Can you provide the current structural assessment reports for the two bridge 

structures? 
 
Answer:   The Structure Summary reports are attached. 

 
29. Question:   Based on the October 2 to April 30 outage dates for the water main 

provided, the current staging for the river bridge will not work.  Can Stages 1A & 1B be 
switched? 
 
Answer:   The selected Contractor can submit an alternate plan for consideration per the 
terms and conditions.  
 

30. Question:   Does the overlay need to be placed on the river bridge before the water 
main can be reactivated? 
 
Answer:   The water main has to be taken out of service in order to complete the 
replacement of the bearings. The water main can then be reconnected per coordination 
with CDWM.  
 

31. Question:   What are the durations for the temporary supporting and or removal and 
reinstallation of the existing electrical ducts and water main? 
 
Answer:   AT&T is responsible for the temporary support of their facility. The existing 
water main supports will remain in place for the duration of the project.  

 
32. Question:   In order to make the dates provided for the water main shutdown the bridge 

deck will need to be placed during the winter months.  Will winter protection be paid as 
an extra on the job? 
 
Answer:   Per the provision for Winter Work contained in Book 3, no additional payment 
will be made for winter work.  

 
33. Question:   Please check your quantity for bridge deck grooving.  35 SY is not sufficient 

to groove the entire deck and approaches. 
 
Answer:   The quantity for Bridge Deck Grooving should be increased to 3,300 SY. 
Please refer to the updated Schedule of Prices.  



 
34. Question:   There is a pay item 523 SY of Bridge Approach Pavement.  The approaches 

at the river bridge appear to be paid as High Performance Superstructures.  Where is 
this 523 SY of Approach Pavement located, or is it a mistake? 
 
Answer:   The approaches are paid for as High Performance Concrete Superstructures. 
The pay item for (Item 25) Bridge Approach Pavement is deleted. Please refer to the 
updated Schedule of Prices.   

 
35. Question:   How are the bridge approach pavements being paid for? The quantity of HP 

concrete for the Bridge approach pavement is included in the totals for Item-51 High 
Performance Superstructure and there is a pay item, Item-25, for Bridge Approach 
Pavement. If the approach pavements are to be paid as Item-25 then the total for High 
Performance Superstructure, Item-51, needs to be adjusted accordingly. 
 
Answer:   Please refer to the answer to question 32. 
 

36. Question:   Please provide detailed quantity summary schedules for the following:  
Item-6 Earth Excavation 
Item-126 Non-Special Waste Disposal 
Item-125 Special Waste Disposal. 
 
Answer:   Please refer to the plans and special provisions for information on these pay 
items. Soils that cannot be reused on site and require disposal will be paid for under 
Non-Special Waste or Special Waste Disposal pending their classification in the field.  

 
37. Question:   Is any of the fill that is to be removed in the existing Viaduct approaches 

included in either the Non-Special Waste Disposal or Special Waste Disposal items? 
 
Answer:  The fill that is to be removed in the existing viaduct approaches is included in 
the Non-Special Waste Disposal pay item.  

 
 
38. The following revisions have been made to Book 3 Detail Specifications, Standards, and 

Details to improve clarity: 
 
ITEM 72  X0327357 CONSTRUCTION VIBRATION MONITORING 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
The following files are attached and are part of this Addendum: 

 
Schedule of Prices (Revised) 
Specification for Item 72 Construction Vibration Monitoring (Revised) 
Structure Summary Report – 6070 
Structure Summary Report – 6134 
 


